
Corporate, Customer and Community Services 
Directorate

Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House, 107-117 Botchergate, 
Carlisle, CA1 1RD  Tel 01228 227354 

Email holly.english@cumbria.gov.uk

1

19 June 2018

To:  Members of the Holehird Trust Joint 
Committee

Agenda
HOLEHIRD TRUST JOINT COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Holehird Trust Joint Committee will be held as follows: 

Date: Tuesday 26 June 2018
Time: 10.00 am
Place: County Offices, Kendal, LA9 4RQ

Dawn Roberts
Executive Director- Corporate, Customer and Community Services

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to:  Holly English
Direct Line: 01228 227354
Email: holly.english@cumbria.gov.uk

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of Cumbria



2

MEMBERSHIP

Appointed by Eden Local Committee

Mr A Connell
Mr P Dew
Mr D Whipp

Appointment by South Lakeland Local Committee

Mr J Bland
Mr W Clark
Ms B Gray

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Agenda and Reports

Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting.

The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website – 
http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=124&Year=0 

Background Papers

Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to the Legal and Democratic Services Unit at the 
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.

http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=124&Year=0


3

A G E N D A

PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

PART 1 - ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC  

1  ELECTION OF CHAIR

To elect a Chair of the Committee.
  

2  ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR

To elect a Vice-Chair of the Committee.
  

3  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
  

4  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises

1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 
a beneficial interest) and the authority 

(a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and 

(b) Which has not been fully discharged. 

4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.  

5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 



4

the authority for a month or longer.  

6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge) 

(a) The landlord is the authority; and

(b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest.

7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where

(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area 
of the authority; and

(b) Either – 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class.

In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered.

Note

A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners). 
  

5  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any item on the agenda.
  

6  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

To receive the minutes of the previous meeting held on 8 March 2018 (copy enclosed).
  (Pages 7 - 10)

7  CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT

To consider a report from the Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community 
Services (copy enclosed).
  (Pages 11 - 22)



5

8  GRANT APPLICATIONS

To consider grant applications received by Cumbria Community Foundation (copy 
enclosed).
  (Pages 23 - 62)

9  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting will be held on 21 September 2018 at County Offices, Kendal.
  

PART 2 - ITEMS  CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  

10 PROPERTY MATTERS

To consider a report from the Land Agent (copy enclosed).
  (Pages 63 - 64)



This page is intentionally left blank



HOLEHIRD TRUST JOINT COMMITTEE

Minutes of a Meeting of the Holehird Trust Joint Committee held on Thursday, 8 
March 2018 at 10.00 am at County Offices, Kendal, LA9 4RQ

PRESENT:

Mrs BC Gray (Chair)

Mr J Bland
Mr W Clark

Mr P Dew

Officers in Attendance:-

Mr S Consterdine - Democratic Services Officer
Ms J Dixon - Savills
Mr M Towers - Savills
Mr D Rawle - Senior Estates Surveyor

PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE 
PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

19 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Mr A Connell and Mr D Whipp.

20 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Mr W Clark declared an interest in item 6, No 20546 Grasmere Village Society, as 
he was involved with this group who were applying for this grant and will not take 
part in the discussions relating to this item.

21 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED, that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of Item No 8– Property Matters as it contains 
exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

22 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

7

Agenda Item 6



RESOLVED, that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 26 January 
2018  were agreed as accurate.

23 CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT

The Trustees considered a report from the Corporate Director – Resources and 
Transformation which identified the unallocated amounts available for distribution on 
grants and fees for the remainder of the 2017-18 financial year.

The Trustees were again disappointed that the Finance Officer could not attend the 
meeting and asked if he could attend at least one meeting per year and also asked 
if he could attend the next meeting following the end of the financial year.

Following a discussion a question was asked how the figure of £40,000, the amount 
for distribution in section 4.2 of the report was arrived at. David Rawle, Senior 
Estates Surveyor mentioned that for as long as he has been attending the 
Committee meetings it has always been £40,000 and there was no restriction on the 
sum being reviewed.

The Trustees agreed that this should be an item for a future meeting to review this 
figure.
 
RESOLVED, that 

1. The amount for distribution be reviewed at a future meeting.
2. Members note the amounts available for distribution on grants and fees for 

the remainder of the 2017-18 financial year.

24 GRANT APPLICATIONS

The Trustees considered a report which detailed the grant applications received by 
the Cumbria Community Foundation which included a list of applications and their 
eligibility criteria. All projects had been assessed on the Community Foundation 
Standard Procedure. 

20546 Grasmere Village Society - funding is to improve the facilities in the existing 
children’s playground. Mr W Clark did not take part in this discussion.

Amount Requested £4000
Amount Allocated   £2000

2055 Holme Bowling Club - funding is to purchase additional maintenance 
equipment which will allow them to maintain the playing surface of their green to a 
higher standard than at present.

Amount Requested £2000
Amount Allocated   £2000

8



20559a With Singing in Mind – funding is to increase awareness through publicity of 
their weekly singing workshop.

Amount Requested £2000
Amount Allocated   £2000

20588 The Beck Community Centre – funding is to provide outdoor adult gym 
equipment close to the Beck Community centre.

Amount Requested £1000
Amount Allocated   £  329

20548 Preston Richard Community Plan Group – to fundi a one off cost to purchase 
a further two Speed Indicator Devices (SID's).

Amount Requested £3000
Amount Allocated   £  0

RESOLVED, that the following funding applications be approved:-

       Grant No                       Applicant             Awarded

 20546             Grasmere Village Society                                        £ 2000
 20555             Holme Bowling Club                                                £ 2000
 20559a           With Singing In Mind                                               £ 2000
 20588             The Beck Community Centre                                   £  329
 20548             Preston Richard Community Plan Group                  £ 0

25 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting will be held on 26 June 2018.

26 PROPERTY MATTERS

The Senior Estates Surveyor and representatives from Savills presented a detailed 
report which updated the Trustees on current property matters on the Estate, 
including:-

 Leonard Cheshire Disability (LCD) – Holehird House

 Lakeland Horticultural Society (LHS)

 Holehird Farm Flat

 1 North Lodge

 Far Orrest Farm – Storm Damage

9



 Farm and Land Rent Reviews

 Residential Rent Reviews

 General Items.

There was a general discussion in respect the tenants of the properties and rents 
charged and a question was asked if there was any restriction on who the properties 
are rented to.

The Senior Estates Surveyor said that there were no restrictions on who the 
properties are rented to but there is a preference to have local people/workers in the 
properties.

RESOLVED that:-

1. the Trusts objectives be looked at and possibly revised as they may now be 
out of date.

The meeting ended at 11.35 am

10



HOLEHIRD TRUST JOINT COMMITTEE

Meeting date: 26 June 2018

From: Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and 
Community Services

CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT 2017-20

FINANCIAL STATEMENT and DISTRIBUTIONS 2017-18

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This report wishes to identify the amounts available for distribution on 
grants and fees for the 2018-19 financial year. 

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1 There are no strategic planning or equality implications.

3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 Members are asked to note the amounts available for distribution on 
grants and fees for the 2018-19 financial year. 

4.0 BACKGROUND

4.1 At the meeting held on 6th March 2017 the amount made available for 
distribution on grants for each year of the current agreement with Cumbria 
Community Foundation was set at £ 40,000 with fees of £ 4,000 (10% of 
grants awarded).

4.2 In 2017-18 the amount distributed on grants was £ 40,000.

4.3 As there were no unallocated amounts for the 2017-18 financial year no 
adjustment to the amounts available for 2018-19 needs to be made.

4.4 The amount available to distribute in 2018-19 is the originally set £ 40,000 
with fees of £ 4,000.

11

Agenda Item 7



5.0 OPTIONS

5.1 This is not really an options report but to note the amounts available  for 
distribution on grants and fees in the 2018-19 financial year.                                                                                                                                    

6.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1 These are set out in the report.

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 There are no direct legal implications to this report at this stage.

8.0 CONCLUSION

8.1 To note the amounts available for distribution on grants and fees for the 
2018-19 financial year. 

David Routledge
Finance Officer (Childrens Services)
13th June 2018

APPENDICES

Financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2018

IMPLICATIONS

Electoral Division(s): All within the former County of Westmorland

Executive Decision Yes*  

Key Decision  No*

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?   N/A*

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?  No*

  N/A*If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?

 No*Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

  N/A*Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken?

 No*  Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

12



PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

Holehird Trust Joint Committee, 6th March 2017, Minute No. 31

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Finance Team files containing details of grants, allocations and correspondence 
with Cumbria Community Foundation re the agreement.

Contact: David Routledge    Tel: 01228 226855
        E-Mail :  david.routledge@cumbria.gov.uk

13



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Charity Reg No. 235345

Balance Sheet as at 31.03.18

Note 31.03.18 31.03.17

Fixed Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets 3 8,200,041 8,200,041

Investments 2 762,897 723,722

 

8,962,938 8,923,763

Current Assets

Debtors 4 192,404 72,413

Cash 0 27,702

192,404 100,115

Liabilities: due within one year 5 18,728 0

Net Current Assets 173,676 100,115

Net Assets 9,136,614 9,023,878

Represented By:

Funds and Reserves 6

Unrestricted Funds 744,067 631,331

Capital Reserve 245,514 245,514

Revaluation Reserve 8,147,033 8,147,033

9,136,614 9,023,878

 

15



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Charity Reg No. 235345

 

Income & Expenditure Account for the year ended 31.03.18

 Note  31.03.18 31.03.17

Incoming Resources

Sale of Investments 0 100,000

Rents 194,523 189,551

Insurance Claims 33,953 0

Interest on Balance 322 150

Total incoming Resources 228,798 289,701

Resources Expended

Building & Ground Maintenance 61,786 98,723

Other Premises Costs 22,921 30,347

Other  26,530 39,766

Grants 40,000 38,980

Fees 4,000 3,898

Total Resources Expended 155,237 211,714

Net Incoming / Outgoing( - ) Resources 73,561 77,987

Other Recognised Gains and Losses

Unrealised Gains / ( - Losses)

on Investments 2 39,175 16,842

Net Movement in Funds 112,736 94,829

Balance B/F 631,331 536,502

Balances C/F 744,067 631,331

17



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Charity Reg No. 235345

Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31.03.18

1 Accounting Policies

These accounts have been prepared using the accruals convention and in accordance 

with applicable accounting standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice

on Accounting by Charities.

2 Unrealised Gains on Investments

Valuation at 31.03.18 was 14,944.88 pence per COIF accumulation share.

5,104.74 units were held at this date.

£

Valuation of Holding at 31.03.17 723,722

Valuation of Holding at 31.03.18 762,897

Unrealised Gain / ( - Loss) 39,175  

In order to guard against potential reduction in valuation due to the 

EU referendum vote 843.04 units were sold on 22.06.16. This realised £ 100,000.

3 Tangible Fixed Assets

£

Valuation at 31.03.17 8,200,041

Additions for year 0

Disposals for year 0

Revaluation in year 0

Net Book Value at 31.03.18 8,200,041

4 Debtors 2017/18 2016/17

Rent Income 4,314 2,239

Under allocation of grants and fees 0 6,147

Balance Held in Client Account (Savills) 188,090 64,027

192,404 72,413

5 Liabilites - due within one year 2017/18 2016/17

General Creditors 0 0

Overdrafts 18,728 0

6 Reserves

Unrestricted Capital Revaluation

Funds Reserve Reserve

Balance at 31.03.17 631,331 245,514 8,147,033

Movement in Year 112,736 0 0

Balance at 31.03.18 744,067 245,514 8,147,033

19



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Schedule of Grants paid 2017-18

Organisation Application No Awarded (£) Locality

St.Michael's Parochial Church Council 19458 1,500 Eden

Our Place Youth Club 19742a 2,000 South Lakeland

South Cumbria Breastfeeding Support 19754a 1,000 South Lakeland

1st Kendal Scouts 19869b 2,000 South Lakeland

St.Thomas Community Connections 19965b 1,214 South Lakeland

Growing Well 19981b 2,000 South Lakeland

Penrith Cricket Club 20001b 1,000 Eden

Highlights Productions 20025b 1,000 Eden

Euphoric Circus 20089a 1,500 Eden

Morland Newby and Sleagill Village Hall 20127b 2,000 Eden

Ormside Village Hall 20148a 2,000 Eden

Kendal and South Lakes Centre for Independent Living ‘One Voice’ 20216 1,500 South Lakeland

Kendal Lads and Girls Club 20267b 2,000 South Lakeland

Lyvennet Nursery Group Crosby Ravensworth 20418 2,000 Eden

Riversiders Trust 2042c 2,000 South Lakeland

Eden Hearing Services 20485b 2,000 Eden

Friends of Abbott Hall Playground 20487c 2,000 South Lakeland

Windermere Youth Project 20507 1,467 South Lakeland

Castle Street Community Centre Kendal 20430c 2,000 South Lakeland

Kendal and District Bus Users 20532 1,000 South Lakeland

Kendal Timebank 20547 490 South Lakeland

Grasmere Village Society 20546 2,000 South Lakeland

Holme Bowling Club 20555 2,000 South Lakeland

With Singing In Mind 20559a 2,000 South Lakeland

The Beck Community Centre 20588 329 South Lakeland

40,000

21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HOLEHIRD TRUST – 26th June 2018

All of the applications are eligible geographically and have been selected on the Trusts 
charitable objectives and priorities – Older People, Disabled People, Children and Youth. 
All projects have been assessed on the Community Foundation’s standard procedure.

20566b Westmorland Red Squirrel Society
Equipment, Publicity, Feed Costs, Volunteer Expenses 
Requested £2,570.99
Recommended £0
Priority –Not a priority for the fund

20594a Askham & Distict Community Centre
Swimming pool equipment
Requested £5,132.00
Recommended £2,000.00
Priority – All age groups
Charitable objectives - To provide the facilities to beneficairies

20600 Greenbank & Castlefield Residents Association
Refurbishment of Play Area 
Requesting £1,500.00  
Recommended £1,500.00
Priority – Children & Young People
Charitable objectives - To provide the facilaties to beneficairies

20666b Stainton Institute
Lighting costs
Requesting £8,000.00  
Recommended £2,000.00
Priority - All age groups
Charitable objectives - To provide the facilities to beneficiaries

20695b Shap Memorial Hall
Kitchen Refurbishment
Requesting  £6,583.98
Recommended £3,000.00  
Priority - All age groups
Charitable objectives - To provide the facilities to beneficiaries

20698 Kendal Torchlight Procession LTD
Kendal Torchlight Carnival 2018
Requesting  £2,000.00
Recommended £2,000.00  
Priority - All age groups
Charitable objectives - To provide the facilities to beneficiaries

23

Agenda Item 8



HOLEHIRD TRUST – 26th June 2018

20745 Temple Sowerby Cricket Club
New Wicket Mower
Requesting  £3,000.00
Recommended Contribution if funds allow  
Priority - All age groups
Charitable objectives - To provide the facilities to beneficiaries

20773b South Lakes Foyer
iPads and Tablets Social Class 
Requesting  £2,499.00
Recommended £1,500.00  
Priority – All age groups, especially young people
Charitable objectives – to provide the services to beneficiaries

20780c Blackwell sailing
Vital Group sailing sessions including transport 
Requesting  £3,857.00
Recommended £1,000.00  
Priority – people with a disability
Charitable objectives – to provide the services to beneficiaries

20806a Happy Hooves Riding for All
Equine Therapy Courses/Sessions 
Requesting  £6,400.00
Recommended £3,000.00  
Priority - People with a disability
Charitable objectives - to provide the services to beneficiaries

20815 Musgrave Church Field
Educational visits
Requesting £1,760.00  
Recommended £880.00
Priority - Children and Young People
Charitable objectives -To advance the education of beneficiaries

20585a Manna House
Stephenson Centre Refurbishment 
Requesting £25,000.00  
Recommended £880.00
Priority - Children and Young People
Charitable objectives -To advance the education of beneficiaries

24



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 18/19 (Groups) Application no 20566b
Project cost £4,670.99 Amount requested £2,570.99
Amount 
recommended

Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Westmorland Red Squirrel Society (WRSS)
Post Town KENDAL District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 6 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

133

Aims of the 
group

Westmorland Red Squirrels aims to conserve our endangered red squirrels in South East 
Cumbria and educate the public on the subject of the Red Squirrel. Our work protects and 
improves the environment and enhances biodiversity.  By preserving a species traditionally 
associated with the Lake District we are helping to maintain our landscape’s special and 
unique character.
Our group is run entirely by volunteers. In 2017 we exhibited at 16 local events, gave talks to 
13 local societies, held 3 public meetings and gave 3 media interviews. We host a website, a 
Facebook page and a Twitter account and we produce a leaflet and a bi-monthly E-News. This 
all raises awareness about the plight of the Red Squirrel and gains support. 
We raise money from a variety of sources to finance our activities. In the 2017 calendar year, 
our income was as follows: Membership Fees - 19%; Donations - 18%; Collection Boxes - 
9%; Sponsorship - 8%; Gift Aid - 11%; Own Fundraising - 15%; Grants - 19%; Other Income 
- 1%. 
The main threat to the Red Squirrel is the invasive American Grey Squirrel. It passes on a 
disease fatal to red squirrels, and out-competes them for both food and habitat. Until research 
finds another solution, the only way to protect red squirrels is to keep the two populations apart 
by controlling the spread of grey squirrels. Our team of trained volunteers and rangers carry 
out our conservation work, including the culling of grey squirrels using legal and humane 
methods. 
We work closely with other Cumbrian voluntary red squirrel groups, and with Red Squirrels 
Northern England, the official red squirrel project for the North of England, to whom we 
submit our conservation records. We co-operate with the larger local conservation 
organisations to produce co-ordinated strategies to protect our red squirrels.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

8 No. of 
approved 
grants

5 Total Amount 
Awarded

£5730.00

Project Details
Project title Equipment, Publicity, Feed Costs, Volunteer Expenses
Project detail We are applying for funding for ongoing activity.  Some of our equipment needs replacing, we 

are running short of leaflets, and we would appreciate help with supplementary feeding for red 
squirrels and with volunteer expenses.
1) The gazebo that we use for shelter when attending shows was purchased in 2011. Its frame 
is still in good working order, but the cover is damaged and needs replacing. Our current, plain 
cover means that we also have to display a banner above the door to show which organisation 
we represent - this looks untidy, gets in the way and is out-of-date. We would like a new 
gazebo cover which includes our name and logo printed on the 4 sides of the skirt of the roof 
canopy.
2) We have been using wildlife cameras to monitor for squirrel presence since 2012 and we 
need to replace 4 older cameras that are now beyond economic repair. 
3) We only have 400 leaflets left which will not be enough to last through 2018.  A reprint of 
2,500 will be sufficient until our next major leaflet re-design.
4) We provide supplementary food for red squirrels we would appreciate some help with these 
costs.
5)  We reimburse travel costs to volunteers who carry out conservation work and would like 

25



funding to help with these costs.
Need We have 319 members and other supporters spread across SE Cumbria. We receive red squirrel 

sighting reports from our supporters and members of the public, with 457 red squirrels reported 
seen in 2017. Support for our cause is evident when we meet the public - we attended 16 local 
shows and events this year, gave 13 talks at the invitation of interested groups and held 3 
public meetings. When we conducted a short survey we found Cumbrians (99%) and visitors 
(98%) to be in favour of conservation to protect red squirrels. Local tourism businesses are 
keen to preserve our red squirrels as an attraction for their customers - as evidenced by their 
use of red squirrel images in publicity and the sponsorship and support we receive from 
caravan sites and hotels.

Disadvantage Our work is not specifically targeted at people who are disadvantaged but contributes towards 
protecting and improving the environment and enhancing biodiversity, which the government 
acknowledges has benefits for health and well-being.  Seeing red squirrels in the wild brings 
pleasure to many in SE Cumbria, including, we hope, to those who are disadvantaged. 
Increasingly, footpaths are being designed to allow easier access for all abilities to our remoter 
countryside where red squirrels might be spotted. For example, there is an easy-access footpath 
around Tarn Hows passing very close to where red squirrels have been recorded. When red 
squirrel populations are established they can become regular visitors at garden bird feeders 
where they charm everyone with their antics.

Benefits 1) A new gazebo cover will enable us to continue exhibiting at local shows and events - we 
attended 11 outdoor events in 2017. We meet the public to explain the plight of the Red 
Squirrel, and we make new contacts and gain members and other forms of support. Our name 
and logo printed around the skirt of the new roof canopy will better signal who we are and 
what we do, and distinguish us from other exhibitors. 
 2) Our leaflets are displayed at shows, talks, public meetings and next to our collection boxes. 
Our volunteers carry them to give out to those who express an interest. The leaflets explain 
about red squirrels and our conservation work to save them, and include an application form to 
join our group.  Because they carry on promoting our cause when we are not physically 
present, they are a vital component of our group's publicity.  
3) We have 24 wildlife cameras in constant use by our rangers and volunteers and they have 
transformed our conservation work and enable us to detect squirrels that we would otherwise 
not have known about.   By using cameras we have seen red squirrels reclaiming old territories, 
and then been delighted to see them produce litters of young.  Most importantly, the 
information we get from the cameras enables us to target our work more effectively. 
4)  We provide supplementary food for red squirrels to help them re-establish when they are 
reclaiming their old territories. We also provide food for populations of reds to counteract the 
effects of stress caused by large-scale felling operations which suddenly deprive them of 
habitat and food sources. Increasing their resilience by maintaining a food supply allows them 
time to adapt to their new circumstances and the strength to move on to find new territories 
where necessary. 
5) Paying for travel costs incurred by volunteers doing conservation work on our behalf allows 
us to retain our existing volunteers and to make it affordable for new recruits to join.  Many of 
our volunteers are happy to pay their own travel expenses up to a point, but those spending a 
lot of their time on conservation work and covering large areas of woodland on our behalf are 
the ones we particularly need to attract and keep. Without reimbursement of their expenses 
they would soon be very much out of pocket.

Measure The benefits of a new gazebo cover will be measured directly by the number of outdoor events 
and shows we are able to attend in 2018 and beyond.  A leaflet re-printing will mean that we 
won't run out of leaflets this year. Shows and leaflets both contribute towards gaining new 
members and other forms of support. We keep records of membership, and at our all our 
shows, meetings and events we have a contact sheet detailing attendee's areas of interest, and 
any follow-up required, which provides feedback on the benefits of their attendance at our 
stand. These sheets are collated and reported to trustees. 
Wildlife cameras show squirrel presence, and records of our conservation work are sent on to 
Red Squirrels Northern England for inclusion in the regional database, as are the camera 
images recorded during their Annual Spring Monitoring Programme. All red squirrel sightings 
are shown on the annual maps on our website. We use the photos, together with the place name 
and date, to display in the sidebar on our website to illustrate red squirrel range.  
Using the wildlife cameras, we can show red squirrels using their supplementary feeders, and 
see the young squirrels joining their parents when a population has become sufficiently re-
established to breed.

26



We receive travel claims from volunteers that are dealt with through our accounts and 
published at our AGM. The travel claims are backed up by their associated conservation 
records so that we can see the benefits of funding their expenses.

After funding 
ends

Our group set out in 2015 to maintain and, if possible, to increase the range of red squirrels in 
our area, and we are succeeding at both.  We anticipate carrying on with our work as it is now 
until research provides a better solution and/or there are changes to government policy. There 
are possibilities on the cards for both, but they could take several years to materialise.
Meanwhile, we continue to explore ways to make our funding more regular and sustainable. 
We would like to attract more funding from businesses and tourists, both of whom benefit from 
us protecting red squirrels in the Lake District.

No of beneficiaries 20000 No of volunteers 50

Expenditure
Volunteer costs: £1,000.00
2222 volunteer miles @ 45p per mile = £1000

Operational costs: £500.00
Supplementary feed = £500. 
Prices vary throughout the year. For example: 20kg bag 
of peanuts = £35.95. 20 kg bag of cobnuts = £92.00. We 
ask different suppliers for quotes at the time of ordering.

Capital costs: £956.60
4 x Ltl Acorn 5310A 940nm cameras @ £105.90 each = 
£423.60
Gazebo cover and printing = £533.00

Publicity costs: £114.39
2500 leaflets @ 114.39

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£2,100.00 Own funds - £1600 for volunteer expenses, £500 for supplementary 
feeding.

Applying 
Elsewhere

No

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Established in 2005, the registered charity (no. 1144416) is growing every year and now has 
over 50 volunteers and 312 members. The group provides data for Northern Red Squirrels 
organisation and a regional database. They also attend local shows to educate people on the 
species and give talks to organisations such as WI. 

The 5-year Red Squirrels Northern England (RSNE) project has come to an end, and now 
continues in a much reduced form. These changes have had an adverse effect on the charity in 
terms of the reduced amount of help they've received this year. 
Protection of a species is not a priority but the organisation does provide volunteer 
opportunities. 

The trustees may want to consider supporting volunteer costs?

27



This page is intentionally left blank



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 18/19 (Groups) Application no 20594b
Project cost £5,132.00 Amount requested £5,132.00
Amount 
recommended

£2,000.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Askham and District Community Centre
Post Town PENRITH District Eden

Grant Priority 5 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

91

Aims of the 
group

The objective of the charity is, in the interests of social welfare, to improve the conditions of 
life for the inhabitants of Askham and District without distinction of political, religious or 
other considerations by the provision of facilities for recreation and other leisure time 
occupations. We aim to combat rural isolation and to improve the quality of life of the 
community by providing social, leisure and health promoting activities. These include coffee 
mornings, community breakfasts, Guides, keep fit classes, table tennis and various other clubs 
and societies. The facilities we provide are a village hall, swimming pools and car park.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

10 No. of 
approved 
grants

8 Total Amount 
Awarded

£13827.00

Project Details
Project title Swimming Pool Equipment
Project detail 1. Small pool cover. We have a main 20 metre pool and a smaller, shallow 5 metre pool for 

younger children to enjoy the water. We would like to apply for funding to buy a cover for the 
small pool which will insulate it overnight. The cover is likely to be rubber foam and polythene 
vinyl and will be deployed from a roller. Associated equipment will include a winter housing 
unit to roll up and store the cover in, to ensure it isn't damaged by frost in the colder months. 
We already have a cover and housing for the main pool.

2. Elevated Lifeguard's chair. A chair will give the lifeguards raised viewing over the entire 
pool area and help them see directly into both pools.

3. Baby changing table in the disabled toilets. We have no baby changing facilities onsite. We 
would like to apply for funding to buy a baby change trolley, and to fund the installation of a 
fold-down baby change table.

Need We collected user informal feedback last summer, and understood that people wanted to bring 
their families to the pool and to enjoy the facilities, but on cool days under-fives in particular, 
who were using the small pool were finding the temperatures uncomfortable. This was 
reducing the amount of time families were spending at the pool and were reducing the 
likelihood that they would return. This in turn has a negative impact on pool viability. Our aim 
is for everyone to enjoy swimming in a safe and relaxing environment. If we cannot deliver 
this then we risk not being able to operate the pool, losing all the opportunities and benefits 
outlined above. The equipment we are requesting funding for will support our aim.

Disadvantage The Community Centre and Swimming Pool serve the communities of Askham, Helton and 
Lowther. We also provide services for visitors and holidaymakers.  The parishes are rural with 
little access to infrastructure or public transport to fitness or sports facilities.  The pool and 
grounds is therefore a cherished and valuable community resource providing health and 
community benefits for those living in isolated locations. It also provides an opportunity for 
local young people to access learning, development and employment, where they may not 
otherwise be able to access such advantages. There are opportunities for people to volunteer at 
the pool and join a collective of like-minded people with the common purpose of managing 
this community asset. Volunteering and helping others is known to be a factor in helping to 
alleviate loneliness and depression, which can be encountered in remote communities. We also 
organise events and fundraisers which encourage community spirit and make memories for 

29



young people.
Benefits I am applying on behalf of a sub-committee of ADCC, concerned with the operation and 

management of the swimming pool at Askham. We have our own constitution, safeguarding 
and child protection policies, which are attached. The outdoor swimming pool is open during 
the summer months and relies on ticket sales and donations to continue operation. Our 
swimmer feedback from last year indicated that people felt the water temperature was a little 
cool. Although the water is heated to a temperature between 21- 27 degrees centigrade, colder 
summer air temperatures, such as we experienced last year have an impact on the water 
temperature, particularly if it is also windy or overcast. Our heating plant is being upgraded 
over the winter, using funds raised last year. This will ensure a steady supply of heat to both 
pools, improving on the water temperatures achieved last year. We would therefore like to 
apply for some equipment which will help maintain and provide consistency of temperatures, 
supporting the plant upgrade; and additionally help support pool safety and improve facilities 
for families. Improving facilities in this way will help make the pool a more attractive 
destination for families.

The pool cover will insulate the small pool overnight, which will maintain the water 
temperature. This will also help reduce pool running costs to heat the water. All running costs  
have to be met from our receipts, making efficiencies to running costs makes the operation of 
the pool more sustainable and more environmentally friendly, particularly when we experience 
poor summers, such as in 2017.

The lifeguards have also reported that using a chair with an elevated position will allow them 
to have better sight around the grounds (approx one acre) and directly into the water. The 
elevated chair reduces the effect of glare from the water, which also improves the visibility for 
the lifeguards. Swimmers and visitors to the pool will also be able to have clearer visibility of 
the lifeguard presence, which will help to provide reassurance of safety and creates a 
professional aspect of pool supervision. The elevated chair also helps to ensure that lifeguards 
are not distracted.

Finally, appropriate baby change facilities provides a safer environment for young families, 
ensuring that people have a safe and secure place to attend to their babies' needs. Presently 
parents or carers need to change nappies on the benches in the changing rooms, which do not 
provide as safe or robust a surface as a dedicated changing trolley or fold-out table.

Measure We collate information on a daily basis about pool temperature and weather conditions. We 
can store this and compare the impact the pool covers are having on water temperature. We can 
also collate formal feedback from swimmers and their families about how they are finding the 
pool temperatures, pool safety features and changing facilities

After funding 
ends

We consider this to be one-off funding. We have provided quotes for equipment which we 
expect will last for the duration of our attached plan. The equipment will contribute to overall 
pool viability however, so we expect to be in a good position to replace it or apply for funding 
at a later date if required.

No of beneficiaries 1000 No of volunteers 8

Expenditure

Capital costs: 
Pool cover - Cheapest quote to supply and fit - £3405. 
H2O Servicing Ltd
Lifeguard Chair, baby change trolley and wall unit - JP 
Lennard £1227 + fitting @ £500
 

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£0.00

Applying 
Elsewhere

No

Quotes Received Yes

30



Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Volunteer run registered charity 523049.
The group run the hall which was built in 1929 and also the community swimming pool.
The pool is community run and entirely reliant on raising sufficient funds to keep the facility 
open. Income is derived from season ticket sales, private bookings, day tickets, kiosk takings 
and donations. The Parish Council provides an annual stipend. They do quite a lot of 
fundraising over the year to help towards the costs.  The pool is open all summer and season 
tickets can be purchased. 
The local school uses the pool for swimming lessons during term-time in the summer. The 
children benefit from this activity; they enjoy swimming and learn a life skill.
Amount requested has been split between other funds to help towards the project costs. 
Awarded £2,000 from one of our other funds
Recommend contribution
Priority All ages
Charitable objectives - to provide the facilities to beneficiaries.

31



This page is intentionally left blank



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 18/19 (Groups) Application no 20600
Project cost £85,000.00 Amount requested £1,500.00
Amount 
recommended

£1,500.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Greenbank and Castlefield Residents Association
Post Town AMBLESIDE District South Lakeland

Grant Priority Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

134

Aims of the 
group

To protect and enhance the quality of life for all residents of Greenbank Road, High 
Greenbank and Castlefield, by liaising with, and representing the interests of residents to, any 
other organisations.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

1 No. of 
approved 
grants

0 Total Amount 
Awarded

£0.00

Project Details
Project title Refurbishment of Play Area
Project detail Replace the existing very run down and tatty play area with new equipment and a safety 

surfacing that will allow children up to the age of 12 to play safely together in a fenced 
neighbourhood environment.
The inspections and maintenance of the completed play area will be carried out by SLDC.

Need In October half term last year (2017) we held a consultation event on the play area, handing out 
surveys and encouraging the children to draw what they would like to play on.  We had 37 
replies, which demonstrated overwhelming support for the project, and since then we are 
planning some fundraising of our own. Parents are constantly asking for progress and we keep 
everyone updated via emails and a WhatsApp page.  We also have full support of SLDC and 
our local Councillors.

Disadvantage We have a new play area in Rothay Park which a considerable walk for residents, so local 
children are somewhat cut off from it. Many parents have to work 2 jobs to earn enough to 
support their families in this area due to the high cost of living.  The play area is situated in the 
middle of the housing estate which comprises of a mixture of private and social housing.  Two 
thirds of the houses have children. There is not always time in busy family life to go to the 
park, so this neighbourhood play area allows easy access for children who are too young to go 
to the park on their own.

Benefits We would like to develop the play area so it offers exciting and challenging equipment for 
children up to the age of 12, to be used all year round and accessible to all abilities. Currently 
there is very little equipment on site, it is very old and tatty and offers very little play value.  
There is a small swing, a tatty multi play unit and a springer.  The surface is mostly grass 
which is often very wet and muddy, there are no connecting paths which makes it difficult for 
buggies and wheelchairs to access the site. There is no equipment suitable for older children.  
The play units will be linked by a tarmac or other suitable surface so the area can be used all 
year round and is also accessible to all abilities. The gates need replacing to make them 
inclusive and to deter dogs.  If funds allow we could move and replace the current fencing to 
create a slightly larger area.    New seating and bins will also be included in the design. The 
equipment will be durable and easy to maintain. A consultation event revealed that residents 
like the play area as it near to houses for supervision, and there are no busy roads to cross. The 
children have drawn pictures to show what equipment they would like, and residents are 
supportive of plans to make this a better space. There are no other play facilities in this part of 
Ambleside.
Outdoor play is beneficial for children and allows them to learn from their surroundings and 
interact with each other and their environment - it is important for their physical and social 
health and development.

Measure We will conduct a feedback survey next year once the play area is completed, to establish how 33



residents feel, and how much the children use the play area.  The redevelopment will also 
protect and enhance the environment as the current area is an eye sore and due to the soggy 
conditions it is difficult to maintain to a good standard.

After funding 
ends

This is a one-off capital project, but SLDC will inspect and maintain the play area on a regular 
basis.  The play area has been highlighted on a recent play audit as having being a basic facility 
with the need to upgrade.

No of beneficiaries 70 No of volunteers 0

Expenditure
Other costs: 
Day to day running costs of the Residents 
Association are funded with an annual grant from 
South Lakes Housing of £100.

Capital costs: £1,500.00
The cost of the project will amount to £85,000 which will 
include the design, manufacture of equipment, 
installation and inspection.  As well as the new 
equipment this will also include the safety surfacing and 
paths, additional fencing and accessible self-closing 
gates.  We will be working with the district council on 
this project and they will be producing the specification 
based on the feedback from the consultation.  The 
council have a strict procurement process which uses a 
framework. Suppliers listed on this framework are all UK 
compliant and have been assessed for their financial 
stability, track record, experience and technical and 
professional ability prior to being awarded a place.  They 
are unable to secure quotes prior to the tender process but 
we have attached designs from similar projects.

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£6,000.00 SLDC £5000,Cllr members budget £1000

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes LIP £25000, SLH £5000, A4A £10000, Ambleside Rotary £500, 
Ambleside Lions £250, Post Code Lottery £20000, PCC fund 
£10000, local businesses £2000, Lakes Parish Council £500

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Greenbank and Castlefield is quite a nice area of Ambleside with approximately a quarter of 
the houses being rented out from social housing. 
Volunteer group who were formed in 2013 to benefit the residents of this community.
Large project that once completed will be looked after by SLDC
The quotes they have supplied are from other play parks that SLDC have been involved in, so 
not specific to this application. 
They hope to have all the funding in place over the summer 2018 and start work on the park in 
September/October 2018.
They have not secured much funding for this quite large project as yet but have applied to 
different funders.

Recommend support conditional on them receiving at least half of the project costs, so we 
know the project will go ahead in some form.

34



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 18/19 (Groups) Application no 20666b
Project cost £10,310.00 Amount requested £8,000.00
Amount 
recommended

£2,000.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Stainton Institute
Post Town KENDAL District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 5 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

133

Aims of the 
group

The aims and objectives of Stainton Institute committee is to bring back into use what was 
formerly a URC chapel and make into a community hub and local village centre for the 
community of Stainton. The building, which is Grade 11 listed has historic and local 
importance which requires significant renovation works to bring the building back into use. 
Stainton is the only Parish in the South Lakeland Area which does not have a village hall or 
community centre

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

4 No. of 
approved 
grants

2 Total Amount 
Awarded

£8000.00

Project Details
Project title Lighting Costs
Project detail Complete the installation of mains electric to include a full LED internal and external lighting 

system with the support and advice of Cumbria Action for Sustainability ( CAfS ).  The grant 
will be used to install this phase and the cost of all the internal and external LED light fittings 
under Stainton Institute’s Business Plan: Phase 12 Electrical Installation

Need People in the community are supporting the project by donating their time and money and 
helping to raise funds to complete the community building for everyone to use. Local people 
have expressed an interest to use the community building when all the restoration work is 
complete. Surveys , interest in work progress, drop in to see the progress event, feed-back from 
web-site : www.staintoninstitute.org.uk 

The project has the full support of Stainton Parish Council, which identified the need for a 
community building and meeting place through consultation with all local parishioners in 
published community plans. 

The project is situated in the heart of the village and the community which is vital as local 
people have identified a need for the local community to get –together, support each other, 
reduce social isolation and enhance social integration especially during challenging 
circumstances such as Storm Desmond in 2015 in order to help each other and the community 
at large by having a central emergency contact venue and meeting place. 

Elderly people have identified a need for a central community meeting place in Stainton to help 
to alleviate social isolation and improve personal and emotional well-being. Local people have 
said that an increased traffic flow in Stainton is a concern for them, we have listened to their 
views and this project aims to minimise, wherever possible traffic flow and encourage people 
to access the community centre on foot/or by cycle. 

The project will address the needs of the local community identified in the Stainton Parish 
Plan. It will provide a sustainable solution by bringing back into use an abandoned former 
URC chapel and existing Grade 2 listed building and in doing so will reduce reliance on local 
people having to travel further afield by vehicle transport. Stainton Parish is the only Parish in 
the local area without a Village Hall. 
Local people have said through a Parish Plan that the provision of a community building will 
greatly help to promote community cohesion and integration and will also greatly help to 

35



alleviate social isolation, particularly in the elderly, the disadvantaged, people who have no 
access to transport and who live in an area where public transport is non-existent. 

A committee of local people and volunteers aims to provide a safe meeting place, run by fully 
trained volunteers with a programme of stimulating/cultural events and activities which will be 
inclusive of everyone in the community, including the elderly, young people, people with a 
disability, people who are lonely and isolated in order to improve individual well-being and 
social cohesion.

Disadvantage People in the Stainton Parish and the community are disadvantaged by currently not having an 
easily accessible meeting place that everyone can use.  Stainton Parish is the only Parish in 
SLDC that is without this facility and this is a HUGE DISADVANTAGE TO EVERYONE, 
inclusive of race, age, religion, mobility and gender.

The completed project will benefit everyone in the rural community of Stainton, including the 
elderly, young children in pushchair’s pregnant mothers, disabled people and people with 
mobility issues.  The completed project, Stainton Institute will have a new disabled access and 
Ramp, ensuring that easy access into the building is available to everyone.  The project will 
have disabled toilets and baby changing facilities.

People living in the rural community of Stainton are disadvantaged due to   NO PUBLIC 
TRANSPORT BEING AVAILABLE. Issues faced by people without public transport are 
loneliness, isolation, depression and poor well-being.  The project will deliver completion of a 
community building that everyone has easy access to in the heart of the Parish of Stainton and 
the surrounding area.

Benefits The project aims to raise sufficient funding to complete the building renovation programme of 
works on a community building, Stainton Institute, already started in 2013.   The project aims 
to provide the community of Stainton and surrounding area with its own dedicated and much 
needed community village hall and provide a newly renovated resource centre which can be 
accessed and made available to use by everyone in the community, irrespective of age, gender, 
disability, ethnicity and sexual orientation.

The project will deliver a safe  “fit for purpose” much needed community building in the heart 
of an isolated and rural community which will be managed by a fully trained volunteer 
committee of people operating as a not for profit organisation, Charity No 1125601.

The Grant Funding will be specifically used for Phase 12: Electrical Installation and LED 
lighting of Stainton Institute.  The benefits will be measured by everyone who uses the fully 
operational community building which will have a new LED lighting system which will cater 
for all needs and activities and a new, efficient electrical installation.

People who are vulnerable, isolated, elderly, lonely, disadvantaged, including younger 
children, older children, adults, the disabled and people who wish to improve their physical and 
emotional well-being through a range of stimulating events and activities, including 
educational opportunities, will all benefit as a result of the  funding.

The benefits will be measured by installing a Low Energy electrical LED Lighting System 
within a fully insulated building, in order to use less energy and reduce our carbon foot-print.  
Maintenance costs will be lowered as a result of using an LED lighting system; which is more 
expensive “initially” to install, however in the long-term it is more cost effective and uses less 
energy, which will also result in lower running costs.

The benefits and outcomes will also be measured by the complete restoration of Stainton 
Institute, which includes, Business Plan Phase 12: Electrical Installation supported by this grant 
funding request.  Grant funding alongside fund-raising by the committee and the local 
community will enable complete restoration of a community building which will help to 
alleviate rural social isolation and encourage individual wellbeing of users.

The grant-funding will be used to employ local people, i.e., local tradesmen and encourage 
rural employment and enterprise.   The committee and Trustees of Stainton Institute will 
continue to build links and share best practises with other community organisations  via  CAfS 
and build on the already  strong links with Dr Rhona Pringle of CAfS  (Stainton Institute was 
part of CAfS Green Build festival Programme last year).  Dr Rhona Pringle remains very 36



supportive of our aims and ambitions to reduce our carbon foot-print and bring back into use, 
an abandoned, grade 2 listed building for the community of Stainton for locals to use.

The project will enable the Stainton Institute management committee to share any best 
practices with other community organisations in South Lakeland and thus develop a clearer 
vision of the social, environmental and business best practises for  a community “not for profit”  
charity organisation.

Measure The benefits will be a safe, fully operational, well managed, “not for profit” community hall 
which everyone in the community has access for their own individual needs.

Local people will be invited to give feed-back on the facilities of Stainton Institute, which will 
be analysed, reacted too and improvements made where necessary.

Stainton Institute will link into other organisations to give support and feed-back on best 
practises and lessons learnt.

The carbon foot-print of  Stainton Institute will be reduced by installing high levels of 
insulation and  double glazing and by using a comprehensive LED lighting system, monitoring 
energy efficiency, consulting with experts  and linking with other community halls.

The committee/trustees will record, report and utilise the feed-back given by everyone 
involved in the project so that it benefits the whole community.

The committee/trustees will compare and contrast the progress of Stainton Institute with other 
similar organisations when it is fully operational in order improve and learn.

After funding 
ends

The funding will enable the project to move towards full completion and restoration of a much 
needed community building.  The committee is seeking grant-funding of £8,000 for phase 12: 
Electrical Installation and LED lighting which will progress the finishing of the whole 
restoration of Stainton Institute project at an estimated cost of £67,000.  To date over £150,000 
has been spent on the project.

No of beneficiaries 200 No of volunteers 10

Expenditure
Operational costs: 
£8,000 lighting costs

 

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£2,500.00 Cumbria County Council - £1000; Lupton Towers Trust - £500; 
Baldoukie Trust - £1000

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Registered Charity formed in 2013 when they formed to upgrade an old Chapel and make a 
community facility for the community. 
The chapel was not used for religion reasons any more. It was "erected in 1698" but efforts to 
convert it into a village hall began in 2003 due to it not being used and the need for a 
community area. On 22 November 2013 the conversion for change of use was complete and 
the chapel handed over to the charity who now are raising funds for this project.

The community volunteers have been working with groups such as Cumbria Action for 
Sustainability to get advice on how to make this building as energy efficient as possible. 
They would like to use our funding to install a low energy electrical lighting system, quote 
provided.
They have so far raised and spent over £150k renovating the building. They were awarded 
£5,000 from one of our other funds.

The community has no other community building and no public transport.
37



Recommend support
Priority - All age groups
Charitable objectives - To provide the facilities to beneficiaries

38



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 18/19 (Groups) Application no 20695b
Project cost £8,583.98 Amount requested £6,583.98
Amount 
recommended

£1,500.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Shap Memorial Hall Management Committee
Post Town PENRITH District Eden

Grant Priority 5 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

135

Aims of the 
group

The Management Committee are the sucessors of the original group who were appointed the 
Trustees of Shap Memorial Hall which was built in 1861 as the Market Hall but became the 
Memorial Hall in 1921/25 when a Memorial Porch was built on to it.
The main objective of the present committee is to provide a modern, warm, well equipped 
building to all in the community who wish to use the space for their activity
The Hall was completely refurbished in 2000 and the aim of the committee is to keep the 
facilities and fabric up to the standard that they achieved with the refurbishment.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

2 No. of 
approved 
grants

0 Total Amount 
Awarded

£0.00

Project Details
Project title Kitchen Refurbishment
Project detail The Hall provides extensive kitchen facilities which are widely used.

Over the years since it was installed it has become worn and the workspace is not used to its 
maximum potential.
The grant will be used to replace the work units, cupboards, fridges and deep freeze as well as 
the installation of new flooring.

Need We have close contact with all the user groups and have outlined our plans to them.
We have asked for input and ideas from them.  We know from this consultation, albeit verbal 
that the plans are met with approval.

Disadvantage Shap, although, although situated on the main A6 between Shap and Kendal (our nearest 
service centres) is disadvantaged through the almost total lack of access to local transport.   
The rurality of its situation and that of some of the adjacent small settlements nearby add to 
this problem. There is a three day service provided by a group of volunteers who raise money 
through local Parish Councils along the route and fundraising to subsidise the shortfall in 
income for this service.
It runs one bus a day in either direction.
None of the times are any use to anyone other than a small number of shoppers.
The timetable does not provide an opportunity to travel for health or wellbeing, leisure, cultural 
or social purposes.  
It is therefore important that Shap is in a position to provide some of the facilities which would 
be otherwise unavailable to members of our community and those of the wider area.

Benefits The fact that we keep the Memorial Hall`s facilities and decor up to date guarantees constant 
demand from user groups in the village and county wide.
The financial security which these groups provide enable us to meet the day to day running 
costs of the Hall.
We expect to continue to provide for our current users and with the excellent facilities this 
grant will enable us to provide we expect increased use.

Measure This may be difficult but can be measured by the increased use of the Hall.  We intend to report 
the benefits 
on our website and in our village magazine  Shap Today

After funding 
ends

This will be a one off project.  It is not expected that the kitchen facilities will need to be 
updated for another 20 years or so.

No of beneficiaries 1000 No of volunteers 039



Expenditure
Staff costs: £6,583.98
Mallinson Builders   5820.00 incl VAT
Howdens Joinery.    2983.98 incl VAt
Contingencies            780.00

 

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£2,000.00 Shap Community Enterprise.  £2000

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Volunteer led registered charity that provides a community facility in Shap.  Large list of 
groups and users of the hall.  There is another community facility, the Old Courthouse which is 
a relatively new venture established through a Community Asset Transfer of the Old 
Courthouse building from CCC to CIO which now runs the building as an Arts and craft 
centre, along with providing a venue for Shap Playgroup, educational events and the village 
Library.  
While it provides small meeting spaces it does not have the capacity of the Memorial Hall and 
therefore does not compete with them.  In fact the committees due to some committee members 
in common with both groups make every effort not to do so.

The new kitchen will provide a clean and hygienic place to cook and will help when hiring out 
the hall.
Recommend support, the application went to 2 of our other funds and were awarded £5,000 
towards the project costs. 
Priority All ages
Charitable Objectives – To provide the facilities for beneficiaries

40



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 18/19 (Groups) Application no 20698
Project cost £25,000.00 Amount requested £2,000.00
Amount 
recommended

£2,000.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Kendal Torchlight Procession Limited
Post Town Kendal District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 0 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

142

Aims of the 
group

Kendal Torchlight Procession Limited is the company that runs the annual Kendal Torchlight 
Carnival which engages residents, businesses, schools, charities and community groups from 
Kendal and the surrounding area. Our main aim is to promote Kendal and its surrounding 
district for the benefit of local residents, tourists, businesses and organisations by organising 
this annual event and encouraging participation by making it accessible to all members of the 
community without exception.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

6 No. of 
approved 
grants

2 Total Amount 
Awarded

£1561.34

Project Details
Project title Kendal Torchlight Carnival 2018
Project detail The Carnival requires around 200 volunteers each year to marshal the road closures, entrants, 

procession and crowd plus sell programmes and run the street collection to help raise funds. 
Most are individuals from the local community, others are from local organisations, connected 
to an entry, from local businesses, schools or charities. Without our volunteers we could not 
run the event. All our volunteers have to undergo training prior to the event to ensure they are 
able to carry out their marshalling duties and this training is done usually in 4 sessions the 
week prior to the Carnival. Our new volunteer’s co-ordinator must also undertake specific 
training in health and safety, event management etc so that they have the knowledge to train 
others. It is for this training and our volunteer training sessions that we are requesting funding. 
The actual event costs around £25000 to stage but we only wish to seek funding for the 
training.

Need This has been a well supported annual event in the town for almost 50 years. An independent 
review of the event stated the following" From our observations community relevance was by 
far the strongest element of the Kendal Torchlight. Thousands of volunteers, audiences, 
businesses and participants attend Torchlight each year and have been doing for many years. It

is clear that the event has excellent support from its community and will continue to 
have this support for years to come. Kendal Torchlight 201 7 was a hugely successful, 
excellent, enjoyable and valuable event. The event was managed extremely well and audiences 
thoroughly enjoyed the spectacle

Disadvantage Although not specifically aimed at disadvantaged members of the community the event is free 
to all. We provide special parking and viewing areas for those with mobility problems and 
actively encourage entries from all sectors of the community to make this an inclusive event.

Benefits The funding will help ensure we have a large team of knowledgeable volunteers working 
together to ensure the safety of both participants and spectators at the Torchlight Carnival. 
Training our volunteers also gives them all the confidence to volunteer for other events. 
Marshalling the walking and float entrants. Securing funding for this vital team of people is 
essential to the safe running of the event. Each year we also invite 6 local charities to be our 
partner charities for the event - in addition to helping to raise their profile they help out with 
and get a share of the street collection.

Measure Each year an independent assessment of the event is carried out outlining the benefits to the 
community, local organisations local businesses and the local economy. An extract from the 
assessment of the 2017 event is in the paragraph above41



After funding 
ends

This event builds on its success year on year and for the future we would like to develop the 
creative content of the carnival through building stronger working relationships with local 
schools to encourage older students to become creative leaders and younger pupils to engage 
with the yearly theme. If we can motivate children they will encourage staff and parents to 
become involved.

No of beneficiaries 200 No of volunteers 120

Expenditure
Volunteer costs: £2,000.00
Volunteer Co-Ordinator Training - £450
Volunteer Training Sessions x 4  @ £350 = £1400
Admin costs for training £150

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£10,000.00 Kendal Town Council Festival Grant £5000, SLDC £5000

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes Awards for All £6000, Frieda Scott Trust £2000

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

This organisation is a limited company by guarantee.
They started by running at a loss over the first two years and were unable to hold the event in 
2009 because of lack of funding. 
In 2015/16 they made a small profit of less than £1k and last year their profit was £3,489.00

We have funded this group for the previous 2 years and they are applying this year to support 
the training of volunteers who help at the event.
The cost of the volunteer training is for basic first aid, radio protocol, crowd handling and are 
given a booklet with further information to take away with them, to help them on the night. 

As this funding is towards education and will help the volunteers, recommend support.
I would recommend that they also tried to raise funding for themselves at the event to make the 
organisation financially sustainable.

42



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 18/19 (Groups) Application no 20745
Project cost £4,500.00 Amount requested £3,000.00
Amount 
recommended

Contribution if funds allow Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Temple Sowerby Cricket Club
Post Town PENRITH District Eden

Grant Priority 6 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

84

Aims of the 
group

Temple Sowerby Cricket Club is a well-run and popular village cricket club, playing cricket in 
the Eden Valley, Cumbria. Cricket has been played in Temple Sowerby for nearly 100 years 
but it is not until recent times that the club has begun to grow, develop and flourish.
The aims and objectives of the club are:
- To promote cricket in the local area for a range of people (juniors - boys and girls and seniors 
- male and female).
- To continue to run 3 adult teams (2 weekend teams and 1 mid-week team).
- To run regular junior coaching (in 2017 we had 75 junior members).
- To run Women Softball festivals.
- To hold regular fundraising events to help sustain the club's future.
- To maintain a large volunteer workforce to sustain the ground/committee/coaching.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

3 No. of 
approved 
grants

2 Total Amount 
Awarded

£2000.00

Project Details
Project title New Wicket Mower
Project detail The aim of our project is to purchase a new wicket/square mower for Temple Sowerby Cricket 

Club. Over the past few seasons we have been using a mower which is approaching the end of 
its working life. It has begun to start costing the club money due to having it regularly repaired. 
The mower that we would like to purchase is designed for the demands needed to maintain a 
cricket square. By purchasing a new mower, we would be able to maintain our cricket square. 
Due to the number of teams and junior events we have at Temple Sowerby CC, the need for a 
reliable and new mower is a necessity to meet the playing needs of all the teams at the club.

Need The current members of Temple Sowerby CC are very proud of the club and they are 
particularly proud of the amount of volunteers it has to run the club. Its members are keen to 
purchase a new mower for the club as this will continue to maintain, and improve, the 
appearance of the ground and the quality of the cricket that is played at Temple Sowerby CC.
Temple Sowerby CC management committee has also included the purchase of a new mower 
in the club's development plan, which shows it has consulted the club's members at its AGM.
In consultation with the groundsman committee, the club has discussed how it can reduce the 
demand on them to maintain the square (on average they will spend 15 hours a week maintain 
the ground during the season).
We have also looked at the accounts from the 2017 season (We spent £340.51 on repairing our 
current mower during the 2017 season.

Disadvantage The issues our current members face are:
- Many of them live in rural communities and have a lack of services to access and can face 
social isolation.
- Access to sporting clubs - many local sporting clubs, especially cricket clubs, are struggling 
to survive due to the cost/work required to maintain them/large volunteer workforce needed.
- Opportunities for groups - juniors and women are reluctant to get involved in sporting 
opportunities.

Benefits There are a range of outcomes that purchasing a new mower will bring to Temple Sowerby 
CC:
- Produce a better wicket for all the playing sides.43



- Easier for volunteer groundsmen to cut the square (a reliable machine will reduce the time 
spent maintaining the square).
- Appearance of the ground and performance of the wicket will improve, which is an important 
area to attract new members and to host junior county matches.
- Having a new fit for purpose mower will enable us to invest money, which is currently being 
spent on our current mower, on coaching equipment/coaching education/other facilities.

Measure To measure the benefits of the project we will:
- Collate the number of hours spent maintaining the square.
- Measure the amount of money spent on the new mower compared with the current mower - 
see where this has been invested.
- Questionnaires at the end of the season - one area will focus on the ground.
- Ask new members what their opinions are on the appearance of the ground.
- We have been asked to host Cumbria Cricket junior matches during the 2018 season so we 
will ask for feedback about the appearance and performance of the ground.

After funding 
ends

We do see this as a one of project but the mower we are looking to purchase has a working life 
of around 25 years so we see this as an investment. We have been purchasing second-hand 
mowers for around £1,000 over the last decade and we have regularly had to replace these and 
spend substantial amounts on repairs (see 2017 accounts - Eden Garage - £232.92 and £107.59 
was spent on repairing our current mower).

No of beneficiaries 124 No of volunteers 30

Expenditure
Other costs:  New wicket mower £4,500

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£1,500.00 Fundraising events in 2017 - money is in the club account.

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Volunteer ran cricket club that has been running for nearly 100 years.  In recent years the 
committee have worked very hard to improve the club and membership.
They have completed some fundraising to help the clubs finances.
They currently have two senior teams; the 1st XI play in the Premier Division and the 2nd XI 
play in Division 3.
The Junior section offers coaching for all children aged between 5 and 16 and now has over 65 
registered junior members.  They also have hosted an open women’s cricket session, they want 
to continue to promote women’s cricket. 

Their income comes from subs, sponsorship and quite a bit of fundraising.  They were able to 
purchase the cricket field last year thanks to grant aid. They also purchased equipment which 
made their accounts show a loss but they had funding to cover this loss. 
The equipment requested would help them maintain the grounds and could save them money as 
the new equipment is expected to last 25 years?  They have been spending money on fixing the 
old mower each year. 
The amount requested is too much for this fund but recommend a contribution if funds allow.
Priority - All age groups
Charitable objectives - to provide the relevant goods to beneficiaries

44



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust Application no 20773b
Project cost £2,499.00 Amount requested £2,499.00
Amount 
recommended

£1,500.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation South Lakes Foyer Residents Group
Post Town KENDAL District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 2 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

100

Aims of the 
group

South Lakes Foyer is  based in the centre of Kendal, - close to the bus station and multi-storey 
carpark and is fully wheelchair accessible. Part of Impact Housing Association, South Lakes 
Foyer is a separate social enterprise and stands alone financially.  Part of our role is to work 
and support vulnerable young people with independent living and also assist them, and the 
wider community, to access training and enhanced social opportunities. We have sites at Miller 
Court and Stricklandgate with varying levels of support on offer. All the flats are fully self-
contained, offering stepping stones towards independent living.  In addition, South Lakes 
Foyer is an established Community Hub and consists of a multi-purpose resource centre which 
provides a co-ordinated and innovative approach linking accommodation, advice, information, 
training and a community cyber café. We also offer meeting rooms, the community kitchen for 
hire and office rental to like-minded companies, strengthening our position as a central focal 
point for the community.

The Cyber Café and separate Frieda Suite are valuable training resources.  We work with the 
more mature customers, young people, travellers, learning disability groups, young parents and 
ethnic minority groups to name but a few. Our strong partnerships and collaborative working 
contributes to the range of services available locally. The facilities within the Foyer are 
accessed by many groups who face issues of social, rural and digital exclusion and by 
addressing our services to these groups we enhance their life choices. 

We are constantly looking to improve our impact on the Community – by offering what they 
want and when.  Through consultations with our stakeholders, users and residents we can tailor 
our offer to what they actually want.  This bid is in response to one of our recent consultations.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

4 No. of 
approved 
grants

1 Total Amount 
Awarded

£500.00

Project Details
Project title iPads and Tablets Social Class
Project detail Information gained through public consultation indicates the need to offer a new type of 

training course by means of an IPad and a Tablet.  Through the introduction of modern IT 
equipment's such as IPads, Tablets or IMacs  – evidence has shown that it is increasingly 
difficult for the aging population to grasp the conceptual possibilities, and sometimes the very 
basics of installation and set-up of a new IT device .  By purchasing these popular IT devices to 
use in our Cyber Café, we will offer training such as:-
• Informative workshops regarding installation, available products, set up and where to 
go for help
• Interactive IMac  usage, including the facility to ‘stream’ films and programmes
• Use of a IMACs with Ipads and other portable devices
• Use to access Skype; e-mail; video conferencing; image editing and enhancement of 
digital photographs; social networking; shopping on-line
• Connecting external devises (DVD players, Smart TV, etc.)
We will also be able to advertise our ‘Learn my Way’ classes on IMacs  when it is not in use in 
a class, and also use it throughout our existing ‘Learn my Way’ classes and our weekly Work 
Club.

45



We are asking for an amount of £2499.  This will be contribute to the following:-
 - £1249 towards the cost of  IMAC and installation
 - £350 towards the cost of IPAD 
 - £200  the cost of  Samsung Tablets
 - £300 towards the cost of 1 IPad Mini
 - £240 cost to upgra our existing PCs with new Windows

Need South Lakes Foyer has been delivering basic IT supported programmes and training for nearly 
3 years.  We are fortunate to be part of the wider Young People Services Team, which also 
include the popular Eden Rural Foyer based in Penrith.  Here in South Lakes Resource Centre 
we want to offer the same services to people living locally which are available in Penrith. 
Following the success of IPADs and Tablets Class, which have been run at Penrith Foyer for 
the last 3 years we would like to build on this success and launch a similar class in South Lakes 
Foyer. 

We have been delivering IT training which includes supporting people to gain confidence and 
skills to enable them to become more confident and competent on computers and their usage.

A gap in this project has become evident through consultation with existing client’s, and new 
customers dropping into the Cyber Café.  The gap is the availability of using the portable IT 
devices training and guidance how to install own IPad or Tablet, and therefore offering training 
for more people to access.  An Ipads & Tablets Social programme would fill this gap, as 
follows:-

One day per week allocated to Ipads & Tablets Programme would enable staff to support more 
customers in need.  We have strong partnership links with a number of local charities and 
agencies which would promote this project among their customers.    By offering this type of 
tuition on a regular basis – we would be able to capture even more individuals, enabling them 
to receive support and advice practically on their doorstep.

These will also address the problems connected to social and rural exclusion.  Additionally, we 
will be able to address financial exclusion by offering training on internet comparison sites, 
offering “try before you buy” sessions, which  enable our students to learn how to use  different 
IT equipment before they actually purchase  their own machine. Through this programme they 
will be able to find out which IT device will be the most suitable for their needs and 
expectations.  This will also save their money.

Disadvantage As 100% of our client group is low skilled  with either none or limited access to training , we 
have identified the main challenges and barriers for this specialist group as:
• Social isolation – fear of 
what the internet can or can’t do.  Apprehension of new packages that they may not 
understand, and the fear of how to get training in a friendly, patient manner which does not 
leave them feeling inferior. Our Foyer and satellite centres are embedded in our community 
and we have brought a trusted service to local communities including the most vulnerable over 
the last 3 years.  We offer flexible, custom made learning and our service users have been made 
to feel they are in control of their own progress. We take the time to get to know learners 
specific needs, their level and aspirations, and work with them at the speed they wish. Once we 
have established this information and rapport, the learner feels comfortable to work on the 
modules and naturally progress at their own pace with support & friendly encouragement from 
ourselves.
• Digital exclusion - fear 
of new and technology in general and also for some, migrating from older systems that learners 
have trained to use to progress onto more modern up to date.  Apprehension of signing up to 
deals that are not fully understood and parting with money which involves lengthy contracts 
with telecommunications companies. 
 - Low wages - majority of our customers has limited or none income to pay for the installation 
of the internet at home or purchase IT equipment. We want our learner to use our centre to try 
different IT equipment for free, learn what the internet can do, apply for jobs online any many 
more. 
Our service, with professional and patient tuition has and will build confidence with learners 
moving onto new technology that we have available to sample.  Our knowledgeable staff and 
volunteers have excellent insight into the geographical challenges of the area and what 
broadband packages are available to those particular areas of our county.46



Benefits This new tuition is specially designed and directed for learners to help them get  better 
understanding in different  aspects of IT  and to become more confident in the following 
subjects:   
• IT Tools tuition for IMACs, Android, Tablets, Kindles and iPad machines for older 
learners (who originally learned using Window systems) and want to become adherent with 
new technology.   
• Raising confidence in using IT after training at our Centre and getting connected and 
accessing IT within their household.  
• Help and advice on setting up an e-mail account, photography, social networking sites 
such as Facebook, Twitter, Myspace and Skype for those, wanting to keep in touch with 
families and friends and are keen to expand their knowledge and skills on new systems. 
• Upskilling towards employment & personal – this tuition will be specially designed to 
support job seekers. Majority of our clients who access our Job Club Service have no previous 
experience of IT and computing, and can have to travel up to 80 mile round trip to the nearest 
JobCentre Plus venue.
• Accessing government and public sector websites.  We want to offer training for 
learners seeking help and advice on how to use the government and public sector websites, as 
demand is growing rapidly.
• Health and Wellbeing projects.  Being able to research services of interest in their areas 
is of great importance to the socially excluded.  Also the ability to use site such as NHS Direct 
can be invaluable to the vulnerability of the clients we support.

Our courses are very popular and in demand as there is often no available training and limited 
internet access in the locations these learners reside. 
We want to offer a relaxed and flexible learning programme, to cover subjects learners want to 
learn, from “just the basic “to a more specific tuition for advance users. We know that all 
learners want to apply technology in their lives and for it to improve their lifestyles.
Due to the mass of products now available, confusion over what products to purchase and what 
these products actually do are difficult to understand for some learners.  Nearly all of our 
former learners, who previously used older Windows operating systems, are now very 
interested in tablet computing and have very limited or no knowledge in using the likes of 
Android or Apple systems. The introduction of fibre optic broadband to our area has growing 
interests with our learners. Many people in our location are still getting to grips on how to sign 
up to broadband, providers to choose from, speeds available and the difference in services. We 
want to offer a future proof, up to date/modern learning package with no time limits for local 
residents to get to grips with the vast choice of technology and get them to understand the best 
offers on broadband that are available to them in their locations.

Measure We will measure the value and the targets on an ongoing basis by a number of methods.
As with all projects, we will implement an effective management model from the beginning in 
line with contractual requirements as stated.  We have a clear picture of the outputs and 
outcomes and will start with a timeline of events and activities.  By various methods we will 
market the project effectively such as word of mouth, attending partner’s meetings, leaflets, 
posters, advertising in the press, updating websites and Facebook pages to ensure that all areas 
of communication are covered.
For the customer we will measure at the beginning of their individual learning experience by 
the use of case studies and questionnaires. Also we’ll measure again nearing the end of the 
project by the same means.  This will give us evidence of the impact of the project, and of the 
customer’s ‘journey travelled’ to their goals and also in terms of the customers personal aims.  
If there are any gaps, extra provisions required, or suggestions for improvement– we will act 
on these immediately to ensure that performance is always on target.
Additionally, we will ensure that we involve our partner companies in a similar exercise –to 
ensure that we are reaching out to all like-minded companies and building relations with their 
customers and themselves.

After funding 
ends

We have the benefit of being well established with an excellent reputation in the town and the 
surrounding area for being professional, friendly and achieving results.  We have also 
experience of working directly in the community, and of being a can-do approachable 
organisation. 
As with all projects, we will implement an effective maintenance model, including funding 
strategy. We will approach local and national funders and major local companies or factories 
looking for some sponsorship towards the project. 
We will organise sponsorship coffee mornings and free community events, inviting our 
previous and current funders and partners to remind them about our facilities.  We will host a 47



number of charity events e.g. Pre-loved clothes sale, Art & Crafts sessions to children, Family 
Day to raise some money for the Resource Centre. 
We work with volunteers who are key to our marketing strategies and the implementation of 
projects. 
South Lakes Foyer is an established Community Hub and has a long list of partners and local 
community involvement. Our collaborative, innovative and inclusive approach includes;
• Over 30 partner organisations including; JOB CENTRE actually working out next door 
to South Lakes Foyer building,  INSPIRA and Probation – based in our building, local schools 
and colleges , South Lakeland Council, CBA, libraries, supermarkets, charities & sheltered 
housing providers
• A local & accessible Hub in the centre of Kendal , with partnerships agreements
• Various tried and tested marketing methods including word of mouth, leaflet drops, , 
website advertising, Facebook and Twitter accounts, 
•  We are part of Impact Housing Association - Cumbria’s largest landlord with a 
Neighbourhood Co-ordinator working in the building ready to promote our services.  Close 
working partnerships with all Registered Social Landlords who are ready to promote our 
services to their own residents.
• Existing digital champions working closely with us, including both learners & partners 
- who tirelessly promote our name & vision 
• Good relationships with councillors. We build on this to reach people from all 
demographics 
• Regular events to ensure that our name is out there
• Run innovative/creative competitions (incl. digital interactive games) to act as 
incentives & add elements of fun

No of beneficiaries 100 No of volunteers 2

Expenditure
Capital costs: £2,499.00
£1249 towards the cost of  IMAC and installation
 - £350 towards the cost of IPAD 
 - £200  the cost of  Samsung Tablets
 - £300 towards the cost of 1 IPad Mini
 - £240 cost to upgrading our existing PCs with new 
Windows

Income
Applying 
Elsewhere

No

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

South Lakeland Foyer is based on Stricklandgate in Kendal and run by Impact housing.
There is a sheltered housing scheme for young people aged 16 to 24 years old.
There are 28 flats in the supported housing group, they also work with the homeless hostel in 
Kendal.
They run different sessions at the Foyer such as a job club, cafe, LGBT group use the space, 
healthy eating sessions and children activity session. 
This application is for different types of computer equipment so people attending sessions and 
training can try before they buy their own or get training on the different types of soft wear 
available.
The resource Centre accounts are provided and the groups income last year was around £53k, 
with expenditure £55k, they had funding to cover their loss.
Expenditure is mainly staff and office costs, income is mainly from rent of the flats and office 
space. 
Recommend support and this application will go to the other funds to help towards the full 
project costs.
Priority – All age groups, especially young people
Charitable objectives – to provide the services to beneficiaries

48



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 18/19 (Groups) Application no 20780c
Project cost £3,857.00 Amount requested £3,857.00
Amount 
recommended

£1,000.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Blackwell Sailing
Post Town BOWNESS-ON-WINDERMERE District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 4 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

137

Aims of the 
group

We provide sailing and other outdoor activities for people with disabilities. We provide the 
appropriate support and facilities for this and aim to promote participation on equal terms by 
encouraging independence.
The charity also carries out other charitable purposes to improve the condition of life of such 
persons as the trustees may determine eg occasional activity holidays or camping weekends.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

10 No. of 
approved 
grants

6 Total Amount 
Awarded

£9348.00

Project Details
Project title Vital Group sailing sessions including transport
Project detail We need the grant to fund one season of sailing for a group of adults and children with visual 

impairments. We will provide them with tuition and support from our RYA Recognised (and 
inspected) Training Centre with a Senior Instructor in charge and volunteer instructor support. 
The season will include a weekend camping experience next to the lake and a winter canoe trip 
in December. Parents and carers are included where appropriate (for younger group members) 
and some group members will be provided with transport to and from our sailing base.

Need Our charity is now celebrating 25 years since we started sailing and 3 members of this group 
have been sailing every year since we started! We have an evaluation process, have a 
comments section on each page of our on-site register and invite everyone to attend our AGM 
at the end of each season so that they can give feedback and have a say in further 
developments.

Disadvantage The Vital Group are blind or partially sighted so none can drive and the adults in the group 
attend the sailing sessions unattended, despite some of them also having a learning disability. 
None of the group are now in paid employment so our charity is determined to operate non-
commercially and to assist with transport where we feel this is appropriate. With many in this 
group it most definitely is appropriate. Three years ago the group was getting smaller quite 
rapidly due to individual group members' difficulties with organising and funding their own 
transport. Once on site almost all group members will need a volunteer to lead them about the 
site and assist with the climbing in/out of boats. Some need help to put on and take off the 
protective clothing that we provide.

Benefits The benefits and outcomes of our sailing (and other) activities are as follows:
We encourage all our beneficiaries to connect with others. They are made to feel welcome and 
enabled which in turn leads to an improvement of social skills and self-confidence. The 
friendships created with volunteers often extend well beyond our own activities and result in 
both the volunteers and the beneficiaries feeling a strong sense of community.
The learning of new skills, at an appropriate level for each participant, leads to gaining 
qualifications under the RYAS Certificate Scheme and enabling everyone to share skills and a 
passion for the activity with others.
We are increasing the number of outdoor activities a local person with a disability has access to 
and then by taking part in an activity regularly each participant will experience a healthier 
lifestyle. We know that our sailing sessions have a very positive impact on mental as well as 
physical well-being. All who take part feel happy to take part, are able to build their self-
esteem and they are creating a lifetime habit.

Measure Attendance is measured in the register, skills achievement is measured in the RYA Sailability 49



Logbook Scheme which all our regular attenders take part in. We also get feedback from carers 
and relatives which is crucial to us because so many of our sailing members have learning 
disabilities. In addition to this we have agreed to take part in a pilot evaluation scheme for 
RYA Sailability which will monitor the activities of one chosen group in more detail.

After funding 
ends

We do see the project as being able to continue. We have been fortunate in finding grant giving 
trusts that can fund us repeatedly for this project (but not continuously) and we will be able to 
approach them again when CCF support comes to an end. We can also take advantage of 
occasional events/sponsorship opportunities to raise further funding and will continue to ask 
for donations from specific local groups.

No of beneficiaries 14 No of volunteers 38

Expenditure
Staff costs: £1,425.00
Freelance instructor fees: 57 hours @ £25 per hour for 
the Vital Group sailing/canoe sessions for one year.

Other costs: £2,432.00
Taxi/minibus run from Arnside via Kendal at an 
estimated cost of £152 per return trip. Total of 16 return 
journeys. Lakeland Taxis, Kendal

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£0.00 We are currently spending funds carried forward from last year

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Registered charity 1106865 who are based in Bowness on Windermere.
Well respected organisation who have been running for 25 years. They work with other 
providers such as Bendrigg Trust and the Calvert Trust. 
This is a project that they have ran previously and has shown benefit to the participants.  
Because the people who benefit are disabled and not on high income the organisation cannot 
charge them the full costs for the project so they need grant aid to provide this experience to 
users. 
The organisation have 207 members and work mainly through their 38 volunteers, one full 
time and 3 part time staff.

One season for the Group is 16 sailing/canoeing sessions and this includes a sailing/camping 
weekend. 

All of the group members live in South Lakes area.
Recommend support
This application will go to 3 funds to obtain the full project costs.
Priority – people with a disability
Charitable objectives – to provide the services to beneficaries

50



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 18/19 (Groups) Application no 20806c
Project cost £8,500.00 Amount requested £6,400.00
Amount 
recommended

£3,000.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Happy Hooves Riding for All
Post Town PENRITH District Eden

Grant Priority 4 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

83

Aims of the 
group

Happy Hooves aims to provide a welcoming environment for children, young people and 
adults of all ages and abilities to enjoy a caring, fun and therapeutic experiences,
looking after, interacting with and riding horses and ponies. It provides enriching
experiences, promoting health and wellbeing , and allowing individuals to explore their
own strengths, work on their own initiative and in teams and build self-esteem,
Confidence and life skills, Activities include: Working with horses, stable and yard duties.
Caring for horses; grooming and feeding. Interacting with horses and ponies, through
touch leading and/or riding.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

8 No. of 
approved 
grants

4 Total Amount 
Awarded

£31500.00

Project Details
Project title Equine Therapy Courses/Sessions
Project detail Happy Hooves have developed dedicated training programmes which match the individual’s 

requirements starting from engagement with the horses and ponies through meeting, stroking, 
grooming, stable duties and riding the horses and ponies.  Setting goals with riders can form 
the basis for simple lesson plans and can really help to engage and focus participants in their 
activities each week. Syllabus cards can also be taken home, or back to care or education 
centres, so that participants can share their knowledge and experiences with family, teachers, 
friends and carers (who can also help them to practice!).  The clients will be able to further 
their knowledge and riding experience once the course has completed, at Happy hooves we 
also train for the progressive Riding Tests through the British Horse Society and also the 
individual then will be able to take an examination suitable to their ability and gain 
qualifications, and to be able to continue with the riding lessons.

Need We have identified , contacted and spoken to key players in a number of organisations that 
support the target groups that the Happy Hooves programme aims to benefit. These include 
charities working with carers, young people and families, those with disabilities, mental ill 
health and older people, as well as Housing Associations, teams within Cumbria County 
Council, pupil referral and social care. We have outlined the programme of activities and 
benefits from interactions and potential participants can experience at first hand the benefits 
of the programme

Disadvantage Happy Hooves intends to work with groups of people who suffer disadvantage in relation to 
their age, social background, disability or social isolation. The programme is designed to give 
those with little physical or financial access opportunities to participate in therapeutic and 
experiential activities. 

People who are affected by social issues, (e.g. drug/alcohol dependency, lone parents), have 
physical disablement, have behavioural difficulties that would prevent them from accessing 
normal riding facilities, have a diagnosed hidden disability, (Autism, hearing impaired, 
ADHD) as well as those with disabilities and long term health problems and families in 
crisis, whether due to social or financial circumstances.

Benefits The programme will benefit participants 
Health and wellbeing - low impact exercise in the open air, reduce stress, blood pressure, 
anxiety, improvement in muscle tone.51



Personal growth - building confidence and communication, developing empathy and a feeling 
of achievement, encouraging social interaction and team work and increasing trust and 
responsibility.
Skills and knowledge - enhancing mental focus, developing knowledge, interests and
transferable skills.
The outcomes and benefits of riding lessons are vast and dependent upon each individual, 
however the main ways to wellbeing include:
• Low impact exercise in the open air
• Increased connection with nature
• Learning new skills and developing interests
• Reductions in blood pressure, anxiety and stress
• A sense of companionship
• Decreased sense of loneliness
• Sense of achievement and empowerment
• Muscle tone and function can be improved, particularly those with a disability
• Increased interaction and communication with both animals and humans, which can 
help to decrease problem behaviours
• Improved mood
• Increased trust, confidence and responsibility

We will ask for feedback about each individual’s progress as a result of their experience on 
our programme to show how it has made a positive effect to their life. This information will 
be documented for future reference.

Measure Setting goals with the clients can form the basis for simple lesson plans, and can really help 
to engage and focus participants in their activities each week. Each client will also have their 
development monitored through an individual tracker and wellbeing survey.
Syllabus cards can also be taken home, or back to care or education centres, so that 
participants can share their knowledge and experiences with family, teachers, friends and 
carers (who can also help them to practice!)

After funding ends Happy Hooves has a detailed 3 year development plan which sets out the future
forecast for the group . The main source of revenue will come from providing reduced rate 
programmes to groups and individuals, It is anticipated that participants will access Happy 
Hooves as:
Individual paying customers
Individual, using their personalisation budget
Part of paying groups and organisations/schools and youth association
We will review operating finance and develop a fundraising strategy

No of beneficiaries 80 No of volunteers 4

Expenditure
Staff costs: £3,700.00
some of the sessions will vary on staffing levels as some 
clients will require one to one instruction and others will 
work in small groups.

Operational costs: £3,200.00
Hire of Facilities and Horses is £10 per person per 
session 80 people over 4 weeks £3200.00

 

Income
Amount of funding 
raised so far

£500.00 £500 donation from Mr Forester

Applying Elsewhere No Each client will pay £5 per session £20 over 4 weeks which will 
raise £1600.00

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Happy Hooves was set up in 2014 after the owner sold her horse riding business.  She then 
set up as a not for profit organisation. Happy Hooves provides riding classes for adults and 
children and also parties and training. 

The funding they have asked for is to provide adults and children a 4 week equine course, the 
52



groups which are interested in attending if funding is successful are Mencap (Penrith and 
Carlisle branches), The Eddington Centre Penrith, The Foyer at Penrith and they say they 
have many more individuals with autism and learning difficulties which would like to access 
these courses. 
Their revenue was not as good as the previous year due to the flooding they suffered.
In November 2017 they were awarded £18,500 to repair their horse simulator.
Their accounts (unsigned) show an income of £5,154.00 with a loss of £2,756.00.  This 
included the grant award of £2,000 from us last year. 
This application is to provide 80 people with a disability, one class per week per individual 
over 4 weeks.  They will be asked to contribute £5 per session.
This funding is to subsidise the cost of classes.
Staff costs £3,700 ( £11.56pp).  Use of facilities and horses £10 per session pp, minus £5 
contribution from the individual comes to total of £1,600 (£5pp)
Each session costs £16.56 per person per session. 
Recommend support of £5,300 in total, which is the cost if everyone contributes £5
This application will be going to other funds to obtain the full project costs. 
Conditional on that this funding if awarded, substitutes lessons for people with a disability. 
Priority - People with a disability
Charitable objectives - to provide the services to beneficiaries

53



This page is intentionally left blank



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 18/19 (Groups) Application no 20815
Project cost £1,760.00 Amount requested £1,760.00
Amount 
recommended

£880.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Musgrave Church Field Trust
Post Town KIRKBY STEPHEN District Eden

Grant Priority 6 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

51

Aims of the 
group

1) To maintain Musgrave Church Field, between Musgrave Bridge and St.Theobald's Church, 
Great Musgrave. The Field is open to the public for quiet recreation and is used for local 
events.
2) To maintain and enhance its environmental interest, including the wildlife, plants and trees; 
its traditional barn, byre and stables and its historical features. The Field stands on the bank of 
the River Eden which is an SSSI and an SAC.
3) To offer educational opportunities, especially for children and young people, especially to 
learn about our natural environment and to be inspired to care for it.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

5 No. of 
approved 
grants

4 Total Amount 
Awarded

£2682.50

Project Details
Project title Educational Visits
Project detail We have built up good relationships with local schools, especially Warcop Primary School 

which was a partner with us in Cumbria Wildlife's 'Wildlife in Sacred Places' Project for 3 
years. The school is keen to continue their educational visits under the guidance of Philip 
Cheesley, a very experienced tutor (Forest Tutor/Ranger, who organises Classrooms in the 
Forest at Whinlatter) who has worked with us many times. Warcop School will visit on four 
sessions, including a 'Celebrate Creation Day' with the whole school and parents. The 
programme will also be extended to other local schools.

Need This is the continuation of a programme which has been running for a number of years. The 
school and the children are enthusiastic about it and it is strongly supported by the school.

Disadvantage It is generally acknowledged that children today spend very little time outdoors and in natural 
surroundings. This project starts to address this problem by providing training and experience 
with excellent tutors and surroundings.

Benefits Kindling in the children at our local schools an intelligent interest and knowledge of the natural 
world and a desire to care for it. Through the Celebration Day we also aim to enthuse parents 
and local supporters to care for our wonderful environment and its hidden treasures. One of our 
aims in our constitution states: "To offer educational opportunities, especially for children and 
young people, especially to learn about
our natural environment and to be inspired to care for it."

Measure Feedback from the school - a questionnaire will be distributed on the final session which many 
parents attend.

After funding 
ends

We intend to continue this project and plan to expand the programme and extend it to more 
local schools.

No of beneficiaries 500 No of volunteers 20

Expenditure
Staff costs: £960.00
External Tutor's fees @ £80 per session, including travel 
and materials.

Office, Overhead, Premises Costs: £200.00
A contribution £100 p.a. to the Field maintenance costs, 
including buildings, toilet, fences, railings, trees etc. 55



6 sessions per year, for 2 years

Operational costs: £600.00
Contribution to school or group travel costs, @£50 per 
visit, if required.

along with insurance and water charges.. Any 
expenditure would be made against specific invoices.

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£0.00

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes Will apply to the Holehird Trust and the John Strutt Charity for 
related funds

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Musgrave Church Field is a 4 acre field in Great Musgrave, situated by the River Eden. The 
public have access to the field as a public footpath runs thought the field by the river. The field 
is owned and maintained by the Trust.
Educational visits take place from local Primary and Secondary School.
They plan to hold 6 sessions per year and 4 of these will be attended by Warcop School, they 
will ask the school for a contribution of £50 per session.  They are also looking for £100 for 
field maintenance costs. 
Holehird funded this project in 2012
Recommend support for one year

Priority Children and Young People
Charitable objectives
To advance the education of beneficiaries

56



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 18/19 (Groups) Application no 20585a
Project cost £314,900.00 Amount requested £25,000.00
Amount 
recommended

£2,000.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Manna House (Cumbria) Name Jonathan Brook
Post Town KENDAL District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 4 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

148

Aims of the 
group

Manna House provides a community of support for homeless and vulnerably housed people 
across South Lakeland. Our key services are:
1. Practical material assistance to address urgent physical needs.
Support includes; hot food, shower facilities, clothes washing and drying, food parcels, 
clothing, needs assessment, facilitation of doctors’ and other essential appointments and a 
Winter Night Shelter (in partnership with local churches).
2. Support, acceptance and positive role models for social and emotional wellbeing.
Includes our drop-in, listening, mentoring, befriending and counselling. Co-location with 
Cumbria Alcohol and Drug Advice Service (CADAS), and Big Issue sales, community 
lunches and an outreach programme.
3. Advice, assistance, signposting and advocacy on housing and money matters to 
improve housing security.
4. Learning opportunities that improve health, wellbeing and employment prospects. 
Including: Skills Café, Learning Kitchen, workshops, literacy, numeracy, gardening and IT.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

17 No. of 
approved 
grants

12 Total Amount 
Awarded

£42771.81

Project Details
Project title Stephenson Centre Refurbishment
Project detail Manna House was established in 2002 and became a charitable company limited by guarantee 

in 2012 and has been in desperate need of suitable premises for several years.
This project delivers a permanent home for Manna House - meeting the needs of the 
organisation and its service users of whom we support in excess of 500 each year.
We moved into our current temporary premises in 2010. This move was necessary, as we had 
completely outgrown our original premises.
In 2016, we commissioned an external review of the organisation. This identified: 
‘Overwhelming feedback that Manna House urgently needs alternative premises.   Although 
Castle Lodge has always been seen as temporary accommodation, the general feedback was 
that the building is no longer fit for purpose and doesn’t meet basic requirements, with an 
uneven floor, numerous leaks and is generally in disrepair.  Also, disabled access is very 
limited with restricted doorways and a number of small steps.’

Requirements for new premises were identified as:
• Accessible Services, central location, but not too visible.
• Multiple Meeting Rooms/Offices
• Conference room
• Kitchen & Laundry (washing & tumble drying)
• Shower & washing facilities
• Outside space
• Storage
• Parking
• Reception
• Co-location with key partners such as Cumbria Alcohol and Drug Advisory Service 
(CADAS)

57



We are looking for funding to refurbish our new premises, The Stephenson Centre, purchased 
on our behalf by The Stephenson Trust for £700,000, in a way that will deliver our long-held 
aspirations.

Need Our local Council reports increasing numbers accessing and being accepted for emergency 
accommodation.
We consult with beneficiaries and other organisations to ensure that our services are relevant 
and effective in meeting evidenced need.

A local Probation Officer says 'In an area such as South Lakeland where there are limited 
housing options and resources, Manna House offers a safe and supportive option for vulnerable 
people'.
SLDC's Housing Manager says 'Manna House provides a service to hard to reach individuals 
who are often wary of coming to the local authority. You often work with those people until 
they feel able to then work with us. Manna House is also invaluable during the winter months 
where ingrained rough sleepers and those who have fallen through the system perhaps because 
of their previous behaviour are helped with a service and possibly an emergency bed at the 
worst time of year. This really compliments the work done by us as the statutory authority at a 
time when resources are most stretched. I cannot emphasise enough how invaluable I regard 
your working with us to help the most vulnerable in our area. Many in our communities would 
suffer hardship if you were not there to provide this service.'

Manna House is rooted in the community and has a long history of community involvement. 
The organisation was started by concerned local people. We are dependent on local volunteers 
and staff to operate. We receive practical donations and funding from a range of local people, 
businesses and organisations. Friends of Manna House is run by one of our volunteers and 
raises around £10,000 every year from local fundraising activities. Our Winter Night Shelter is 
operated in conjunction with local churches. Support comes from many different 
denominations and widely dispersed congregations including Dent, Langdale, Crook, Levens, 
Haverthwaite, Staveley, Windermere who have fundraising events for us. 

We engage with schools offering workshops. We also offer placement opportunities for local 
students to study social work and business studies.

We have been ‘Charity of the Year’ for several Kendal Mayors’ and Lakeland Radio. We also 
receive regular support from Tim Farron our local MP – including £3,000 from his recent 
winning appearance on BBC’s Celebrity Mastermind.

We are regular participants in Kendal’s Torchlight Carnival, both as an entrant, but also 
providing collectors and marshals. We work with other groups such as Kendal Community 
Theatre and The Brewery.

Manna House initiated and co-ordinates the Local Provider Forum to encourage local 
partnership working. Manna House has a long track record of joint working having co-located 
with Cumbria Mental Health Group and CADAS for many years. We have close working 
relationships with many other local organisations, of particular note are Kings Foodbank, 
Springfield Hostel, The Birchall Trust, Growing Well, Probation Service and SLDC’s Housing 
Team.

Our ethos is one of inclusivity and we encourage feedback in the development of our services. 
We have regular opportunities for people to shape our services and we have a Client Forum to 
encourage feedback from our service users.

Disadvantage Manna House works with those who are homeless and vulnerably housed in South Lakeland. 
Many who use our services have multiple and complex needs and a growing number reveal 
undiagnosed needs which are not being met by the statutory health and social services. We try 
to meet all needs by adopting flexible consultation methods for different groups. These include: 
Learning disabled clients, people with mental health issues or who have experienced abuse, 
people with addictive behaviours and ex-offenders.
For example, during the 12 months to 30th September 2017 we supported 86 individual clients 
to secure or find a home. We prevented 27 people becoming homeless and helped house 59 
people who were homeless. During this period, we saw the highest number of new homeless 
people in any 12-months in our history, with 87 homeless people contacting us.58



Over this period, we had 552 visitors to our drop-ins, with a total of 2,001 visits. This equates 
to an average of 21 visitors per session. 
During the winter months, we coordinated the delivery of a temporary Winter Night Shelter 
which in 20015/16. We had an average of 4 guests per night, with 19 individuals making use of 
the shelter and a total of 387 guest stays. 
In terms of advice given, we delivered 1,961 appointments for advice, covering 
accommodation, benefits, debts, employment and advocacy. Our Skills Café delivered 639 
sessions for learners, which included a range of basic skills training, as well as offering 
opportunities for improved self-esteem and confidence building. 
Finally, in terms of basic practical support during the last 12 months 252 showers were taken, 
168 loads of clients’ laundry were washed and dried. Many other services were also offered 
including, meals, food, clothing, furniture, telephone calls, internet access, use of IT, 
befriending, listening, advocacy, visits to other services, social and fundraising activities.

The profile of new homeless people using our services is as follows:
Male - 63% 
Female - 37%

Under 25 years - 10%
26 – 35 years – 15%
36 – 55 years – 61%
Over 55 years – 14%

In terms of new client needs: 20% have identified drug/alcohol issues, 31% have mental health 
needs, and 8% have both. Physical health issues are present for 15%. Prison leavers account for 
6% of the total. When we look at those clients with whom we are working with on a long-term 
basis these figures rise to 54% with drug/alcohol issues, 74% with mental health needs and 
31% prison leavers. This highlights the need for our services especially for this group who are 
not readily accommodated and who have a greater need for holistic ongoing support.

Benefits Our new premises will enable us to provide a significantly improved environment in which to 
deliver services. These include our holistic and personally tailored 1-2-1 housing and benefits 
advice that takes into account the multiple needs of beneficiaries. 
We anticipate that 350 homeless and vulnerably housed people will receive assistance, advice 
and advocacy to alleviate distress and to find and keep a home each year.

The chaotic lifestyles of many of our clients are not a choice, but arise from their complex 
needs and often traumatic life experiences. The fear and vulnerability that comes from being 
homeless, hungry and unable to take care of basic hygiene undermines the ability to think 
clearly and act rationally. We will be much better equipped to provide a hot healthy meal, a 
warm friendly environment, clean clothes and a hot shower to enable beneficiaries to get 
themselves together and to help people move from a place of crisis towards greater stability.

Our new Learning Kitchen and associated Skills Café will provide a relaxed and informal 
environment where beneficiaries are treated with respect and learning is tailored to meet 
individual need. We expect that 75 homeless and vulnerably housed people will learn the skills 
and behaviours needed to find and keep a home each year. The high ratio of trained volunteers 
and staff to clients, means that everyone gets the help they need. Content will be targeted to 
teach the skills needed for daily life in a practical way: budgeting, healthy eating, cooking, 
basic sewing, reading, writing and numeracy. We will also offer creative skills and gardening 
which are popular and therapeutic activities. 

Equal attention is given to developing self-confidence and building good relationships. With 
new skills and respectful support beneficiaries are able to more confidently engage in their 
community and become good tenants and neighbours. Around 50 homeless and vulnerably 
housed people will be supported to improve their mental and physical health each year.

We will work closely with our partners to signpost and advocate for timely support to access 
appropriate treatment and therapeutic programmes - starting with on-site support. This is a new 
strand of work which has come out of our learning and will be enabled by the specially 
designed facilities in our new premises. 

Our approach is based on our recognition that beneficiaries have a wide range of mental and 59



physical health problems which are often undiagnosed and untreated. Often disruption housing 
situation has a negative effect on health resulting in missed appointments and interrupted 
medication. These factors combined with withdrawal of services from our area means that 
beneficiaries can become agitated and distressed which can lead to frustrations boiling over in 
disruptive behaviours and possible arrest and detention. 

We aim to work with people and to build up positive relationships. Over time we work to 
encourage improvements in well-being and health to enable beneficiaries to gain greater 
control as they become more stable and better able to manage all aspects of their lives 
including the management of their housing situation.

Measure We have employed well respected local firms to deliver the refurbishment project. Eco Arc 
Chartered Architects were chosen after a competitive tendering process and have worked with 
the charitable sector and have experience of engaging clients in the delivery of projects. 
Bushell Raven are our Quantity Surveyors and extensive local experience and knowledge. 
After taking advice, the refurbishment project is to be delivered by means of a procurement 
process. The management of the process will be closely scrutinised to ensure best-value 
delivery, through the different phases of the project.
In terms of the day to day operational activities of the project. Manna House has recently 
implemented the In-Form system with assistance from The Lloyds Bank Foundation. This 
system has been developed by Homeless Action and is a nationally recognised management 
system. This will enable the capture of a wide range of data to enable the real-time evaluation 
and reporting of statistics.

After funding 
ends

Manna House has a long-term vision for developing its work in South Lakeland. Our lack of 
suitable premises has been a major factor in limiting our ability, but not our enthusiasm, for 
delivering outstanding services to those in various forms of housing need. The partnership with 
the Stephenson Trust, who have purchased the premises for us, is set to deliver a long-term 
sustainable home for us. The premises are sufficiently large to enable us to offer space for 
subletting to other organisations such as CADAS and this will help offset some of the rental 
costs. In the longer term there is space for enlarging the scope of our work to meet future 
demand.

We have a long term operational strategy and business plan. We have several multi-year 
revenue grants in place from The Big Lottery Fund, The Lloyds Bank Foundation and Henry 
Smith to cover core functions as well as regular funding from South Lakeland District Council 
towards our Housing Advice service. This together with our ongoing fundraising activities 
mean that we have a sound financial basis on which to plan to deliver our services into the 
future. 

Furthermore, our new purposely redesigned and refurbished premises will enable us to build on 
our extensive experience of working with our vulnerable client group and enable us to better 
deliver and develop services which will deliver better outcomes for our service users.

No of beneficiaries 600 No of volunteers 80

Expenditure

Operational costs: £5,000.00
Professional fees, including Architect's fees, Quantity 
Surveyor's fees and Project Management fees.

Capital costs: £20,000.00
Refurbishment costs to enable the use of the building for 
the delivery of services.

 

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£52,500.00 Big Lottery Fund £10,000, Clarks Foundation £10,000, Friends of 
Manna House (FOMS) £15,000, Jenny Kagan £7,500, Anonymous 
Donations £10,000

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes Frieda Scott Charitable Trust £75,000, Sir John Fisher Foundation 
£5,000, Beatrice Laing Foundation £20,000, Burnard Sunley 
Foundation £5,000, The Dowager Countess Eleanor Peel Trust 
£40,000, Hadfield Trust £5,000, Trusthouse Charitable Foundation 
£20,000

Quotes Received Yes
60



Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Manna House began in 2003 at The Shakespeare Centre in Kendal but moved to an old 
Victorian building in 2011. The move was always meant to be temporary and on the inside, it 
does appear run-down. In 2015, Kendal suffered from major flooding and the workload 
increased considerably for the charity. Their building also suffered from 3.5ft of flood water 
and they had to operate out of two separate sites. They are hoping to move into new premises 
on Ann Street. A local trust is purchasing the building and Manna House will lease it for 25 
years. Another local trust will provide a capital grant of up to £75,000 to refurbish the building, 
although they require a total of £314,900 for all the work and are applying to other funders 
towards the project costs.
The charity has good working relationships and signpost to other providers such as drug and 
alcohol support charity CADAS (they have an office in the building), Unity, South Lakeland 
District Council, Growing Well, South Lakeland Mind and GP surgeries. The organisation is 
part of several multi-agency practitioner meetings who meet regularly which leads to a better 
referral system for clients.  
We have funded this group from the Cumbria Fund for the next 3 years for running costs.
Large amount requested, but would recommend a contribution.
This application is split between different funds to help towards the costs and has been 
awarded £1,750.00 towards their project costs.
Priority - Adults including older people
Charitable objectives - To provide the services to beneficiaries.

61



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

63

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	7 CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT
	HOLEHIRD - Balance Sheet for Meeting 26.06.18
	HOLEHIRD - Income & Expenditure Account for Meeting 26.06.18
	HOLEHIRD - Notes to the Accounts for Meeting 26.06.18
	HOLEHIRD - Schedule of Grants Paid for Meeting 26.06.18

	8 GRANT APPLICATIONS
	20566b Westmorland Red Squirrel Society
	20594a Askham & Distict Community Centre
	20600 Greenbank & Castlefield Residents Association
	20666b Stainton Institute
	20695b Shap Memorial Hall
	20698 Kendal Torchlight Procession LTD
	20745 Temple Sowerby Cricket Club
	20773b South Lakes Foyer
	20780c Blackwell sailing
	20806a Happy Hooves Riding for All
	20815 Musgrave Church Field
	20585a Manna House

	10 PROPERTY MATTERS

